
NEVADA STATE  
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 10-11, 2018 

HILTON GARDEN INN 
7830 S LAS VEGAS BOULEVARD 

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

8



2

9



 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

September 5 & 6, 2018 
 

BOARD MEETING 
 

Hyatt Place 
1790 E. Plumb Ln. 

Reno, Nevada 
 
Board Members Present: 
 
Leo Basch  Kevin Desmond Wayne Mitchell Jason Penrod   
Melissa Shake  Robert Sullivan Kirk Wentworth 
 
Board Staff Present: 
 
Larry Pinson  Dave Wuest  S. Paul Edwards Shirley Hunting  
Brett Kandt  Yenh Long  Joe Depczynski Kristopher Mangosing 
 
President Basch read the mission statement of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy to 
reiterate the Board’s duty to carry out and enforce the provisions of Nevada law to protect the 
health, safety, and welfare of the public. 
 
1. Public Comment September 5, 2018 9:05 AM 
 
Don Mello addressed the Board with concerns about access to his pharmacy records while 
receiving care. Mr. Mello asked Board Staff to acknowledge receipt of his complaint and 
requested statistics about total complaints to the Board. President Basch thanked Mr. Mello 
for his comments.   
 
2. Approval of July 18-19, 2018 Minutes  
 
President Basch requested a correction to p.10 to clarify that Dr. Craig Weingrow’s 
Controlled Substance Registration and Practitioner Dispensing Registration were revoked for 
not less than one year, effective immediately.  
 
Melissa Shake requested clarification on p.11 regarding whether there was public comment. 
 
 

10



Board Action:  
 
Motion:  Wayne Mitchell moved to approve the July 2018 Board Meeting Minutes with 

the suggested corrections.  
 
Second:  Jason Penrod   
 
Action:  Passed unanimously  
 
3. Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy – Non-Appearance    
 

A. American Service and Product, Inc. – Orland Park, IL 
B. Avera eCare Pharmacy – San Antonio, TX 
C. Caremart Pharmacy LLC – South Richmond Hill, NY 
D. Crestview Pharmacy Services LLC – Tempe, AZ 
E. CTCA/Rx – Newnan, GA 
F. CVS/pharmacy #10762 – Ashland, VA 
G. Dolphin Health Pharmacy – Oakland, CA 
H. Gaston Pharmacy #1 – Dallas, TX 
I. Hudgins Pharmacy, Inc. – Mathews, VA 
J. Metro Drugs Pharmacy Department – Hoboken, NJ 
K. Midtown Express Pharmacy – Nashville, TN 
L. Omnicare Clinical Intervention Center – Spartanburg, SC 
M. Rainwood Rx LLC – Elkhorn, NE 
N. RARx, LLC – Nashville, TN 
O. Route 300 Pharmacy – Newburgh, NY 
P. SRX Pharmacy – Tampa, FL 
Q. Tarrytown Expocare, LLC – Austin, TX 
R. Uptown Drugs Pharmacy – Allen Park, MI 
S. Valencia Pharmacy, Inc. – Houston, TX 
T. Walnut Creek Rx LLC – Omaha, NE 
 

 Applications for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy – Non-Appearance 
   

U. Lakeview Pharmacy of Racine Inc. – Racine, WI 
V. Phar-More Rx, LLC – Bala Cynwyd, PA 
W. Premier Pharmacy Services – Cliffside, NJ 
 
 
Applications for Out-of-State Wholesaler – Non-Appearance    
 
X. Alcon Laboratories, Inc. – Ft Worth, TX 
Y. Aquestive Therapeutics, Inc. – Warren, NJ 
Z. AveXis, Inc. – Libertyville, IL 
AA. Circassia Pharmaceuticals Inc. – Morrisville, NC 
BB. Crosstex International, Inc. – Hauppauge, NY 
CC. Direct Success Pharmacy Department – Farmingdale, NJ 
DD. Exelixis U.S., LLC – Alameda, CA 

11



EE. Horizon Medicines LLC – Lake Forest, IL 
FF. Innogenix, LLC. – Amityville, NY 
GG. Interchem Corporation – Allendale, NJ 
HH. JM Logistical Services LLC – Laredo, TX 
II. Medunik USA, Inc. – Rosemont, PA 
JJ. Melinta Therapeutics, Inc. – Lincolnshire, IL 
KK. Oak Drugs Inc. – Chestnut Ridge, NY 
LL. Pharma-C, Inc. – Paramus, NJ 
MM. Primus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Scottsdale, AZ 
NN. Quagen Pharmaceuticals LLC – West Caldwell, NJ 
OO. Salus Medical, LLC – Phoenix, AZ 
PP. Schnucks Pharmacy Distribution Center – Earth City, MO 
QQ. ScieGen Pharmaceuticals Inc. – Hauppauge, NY 
RR. Scripts Wholesale Inc. – Brooklyn, NY 

 SS. Spectrum Chemical Mfg. Corp. – New Brunswick, NJ 
 TT. Western Wellness Solutions, LLC – San Francisco, CA 

UU. World Gen, LLC – Paramus, NJ  
VV. WG Critical Care, LLC – Paramus, NJ 
WW. Xellia Pharmaceuticals USA, LLC – Bedford, OH 
XX. XPO Logistics Supply Chain, Inc. – Ft. Worth, TX 
 
Applications for Out-of-State Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases – Non  
Appearance   
 
YY. Aeroflow Urology, Inc. – Arden, NC 
ZZ. Avondale HME 3, Inc. – Temecula, CA 
AAA. Back Braces Plus, Inc. – Pinellas Park, FL 
BBB. B Braun Interventional Systems, Inc. – Breingsville, PA 
CCC. Butterfly Network – Guilford, CT 
DDD. C&E Medical, INC. – San Diego, CA 
EEE. Cardinal Health 200 LLC – Atlanta, GA 
FFF. Cardinal Health 200 LLC – Chicopee, MA 
GGG. Cardinal Health 200 LLC – Crystal Lake, FL 
HHH. Cardinal Health 200 LLC – Deland, FL 
III. Cardinal Health 200 LLC – Norfolk, NE 
JJJ. Cardinal Health 200 LLC – Wabasha, MN 
KKK. Clarify Medical, Inc. – San Diego, CA 
LLL. Discovery Medical Supply – Largo, FL 
MMM. Essential HME 2, Inc. – El Cajon, CA 
NNN. Gemstar Inc. – Monsey, NY 
OOO. SD Orthotics, Inc. – National City, CA 
PPP. XPO Logistics Supply Chain, Inc. – New Jersey, NJ 
 
Applications for Nevada Pharmacy – Non-Appearance    
 
QQQ. ER at Aliante, a Department of Mountain View Hospital – North Las Vegas, NV 
RRR. Sav-on Pharmacy #3489 – Las Vegas, NV 
 

12



Application for Nevada Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases – Non Appearance   
 
SSS. Lincare Inc. – Fallon, NV 

 
President Basch disclosed that he works for HCA, the same company as ER at Aliante 
(QQQ) but he can participate without bias.  
 
President Basch asked the Board about concerns with Lincare Inc. (SSS). David Wuest 
explained that those concerns have been addressed during recent inspections. 
 
Melissa Shake expressed concern that B Braun Interventional System’s (BBB) application 
did not specify what products the company sold. Kirk Wentworth expressed concern that 
Dolphin Health Pharmacy’s (G) website contains pre-printed prescriptions that are not in 
compliance with Nevada law.  
 
Board Action:  
  
Motion:  Jason Penrod moved to approve the Consent Agenda with the requirement that 

B Braun Interventional Systems (BBB) provide a summarized list of the 
products it dispenses and Dolphin Health Pharmacy (G) remove/edit the pre-
printed prescriptions from its website in accordance to Nevada law.  

 
Second:  Melissa Shake  
 
Action:  Passed unanimously   
 
4. Discipline 
 

A. Anteekah McClelland, PT    (18-027-PT-S) 
 
S. Paul Edwards, Esq. appeared before the Board to prosecute the case on behalf of the 
State. 
 
Respondent Anteekah McClelland was not present, nor did counsel appear on her behalf. 
 
Melissa Shake disclosed that respondent used to be employed by Walgreens, where Ms. 
Shake is presently employed.  Ms. Shake felt she could participate in the matter fairly and 
without bias.  
 
Paul Edwards moved to have Exhibits 1 through 4 admitted to the record.  
 
President Basch admitted Exhibits 1through 4 into the record.  
 
Mr. Edwards described the facts of the case and offered proof that Board Staff served the 
Accusation as required by Nevada law.  He indicated that he would ask the Board to enter 
default in light of Ms. McClelland’s failure to respond to the Accusation and failure to appear. 
 

13



Mr. Edwards also presented and described Exhibits 1 through 4 to prove the factual 
allegations stated in the Accusation.   
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to find that Board Staff properly served Ms. McClelland. 
  
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously  
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to find that the Board has jurisdiction over the matter. 
 
Second: Jason Penrod 

 
Action: Passed unanimously  
 
Mr. Edwards asked that the Board find Ms. McClelland in default for being properly served 
but not responding to the allegations, and further for findings that the evidence proves each 
of the factual allegations. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved that the evidence provided by the Board Staff proves 

each of the factual allegations. 
 
Second: Melissa Shake 

 
Action: Passed unanimously  
 
Mr. Edwards states that based on the Board’s findings of fact, Ms. McClelland is guilty of 
violations set forth in Causes of Actions 1 through 4.   
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved for a conclusion that the findings of fact prove that Ms. 

McClelland is guilty of violations set for in Causes of Action 1 through 4. 
 
Second: Melissa Shake 

 
Action: Passed Unanimously  
 
Mr. Edwards recommended that the Board revoke Ms. McClelland’s Pharmaceutical 
Technician Registration, Certificate of Registration No. PT18976 and include in the Board’s 
Order that Ms. McClelland may not reapply for not less than one year after the effective date 
of the Order, and in order to re-apply, she must pay an administrative fee of $500.  

14



Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to revoke Ms. McClelland’s Pharmaceutical Technician 

Registration, Certificate of Registration No. PT18976, for not less than one 
year, and that in order for her to re-apply for registration she must appear 
before the Board and pay an administrative fee of $500.   

 
Second: Melissa Shake 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. Noah D. Silva, PT     (18-059-PT-N) 
 
Paul Edwards appeared before the Board to prosecute the case on behalf of the State. 
 
Respondent Noah D. Silva was not present, nor did counsel appear on his behalf. 
 
Paul Edwards moved to have Exhibits 1 through 5 admitted to the record.  
 
President Basch admitted Exhibits 1through 5 into the record.  
 
Mr. Edwards described the facts of the case and offered proof that Board Staff served the 
Accusation as required by Nevada law.  He indicated that he would ask the Board to enter 
default in light of Ms. McClelland’s failure to respond to the Accusation and failure to appear. 
 
Mr. Edwards also presented and described Exhibits 1 through 4 to prove the factual 
allegations stated in the Accusation.   
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved for a finding that the Board served Mr. Silva in 

accordance to Nevada law. 
 
Second: Melissa Shake 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved that Board has jurisdiction over this matter.  
 
Second: Melissa Shake 

 
Action: Passed unanimously  
 
Mr. Edwards recited the factual allegations of the case. Based on those factual allegations, 
the Executive Secretary brought four Causes of Actions related to diversion. 
 

15



Board Action:  
 
Motion: Melissa Shake moved to make findings of fact for factual allegations 2 through 

5 based on the evidence presented and based on Mr. Silva’s failure to appear 
and to respond to the Accusation. 

 
Second: Jason Penrod 

 
Action: Passed unanimously  
 
Mr. Edwards stated that based on the findings of fact and the evidence presented, Mr. Silva 
was guilty of the violations stated in Causes of Actions 1 through 4.     
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved that the findings of fact and the evidence provided 

through Exhibit 1 through 5 demonstrated that Mr. Silva was guilty of the 
violations alleged in Causes of Actions 1 through 4. 

 
Second: Melissa Shake 

 
Action: Passed unanimously  
 
Based on the Board’s conclusion that Mr. Silva is guilty of the violations set forth in Causes of 
Action 1 through 4, Mr. Edwards recommended that the Board revoke Mr. Silva’s 
Pharmaceutical Technician Registration, Certificate of Registration No. PT19453, for not less 
than one year.  If Mr. Silva reapplies after one year, he must first pay an administrative fee of 
$500 to partially offset the Board’s costs of prosecuting the case and appear before the 
Board.  
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to revoke Mr. Silva’s Pharmaceutical Technician 

Registration, Certificate of Registration No. PT19453, for not less than one 
year, and to require Ms. Silva to pay an administrative fee of $500 and to 
appear before the Board if he applies for reinstatement. 

 
Second: Kevin Desmond 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

C. Ivan Goldsmith, MD     (17-101-CS-S) 
 
Brett Kandt, Esq. appeared before the Board to prosecute the case on behalf of the State. 
  
E. Brent Bryson, Esq. and John Clarke, Esq. appeared as counsel for Dr. Ivan Goldsmith.  
 
Dr. Goldsmith appeared and was sworn by President Basch. 

16



 
Mr. Bryson moved to have the case dismissed on the basis that media coverage may have 
biased the Board Members. 
 
Mr. Kandt addressed Mr. Bryson’s motion and recommended that the Board proceed with the 
hearing.  
 
President Basch and each Board Member affirmed that he or she had not been influenced by 
any media coverage of the case and that each could participate in the hearing fairly and 
without bias. 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to deny Mr. Bryson’s motion to dismiss. 
 
Second: Kevin Desmond 

 
Action: Passed Unanimously 
 
Mr. Bryson asked the Board to deny the prosecution’s previously-filed motion to quash the 
subpoena for investigator Matthew Wehn.     
 
President Basch asked Mr. Bryson questions to probe the relevance of Mr. Wehn’s 
anticipated testimony. 
 
Mr. Kandt stipulated to stay the motion until the after the defense presented its case and 
cross-examined other witnesses, reserving the resolution of the State’s motion to quash until 
that time. 
 
Mr. Kandt declined to invoke the role of exclusion.  
 
Mr. Bryson invoked the role of exclusion and witnesses were asked to retire to the hallway 
until called.  
 
Mr. Kandt presented the State’s opening statement.    
 
Mr. Bryson stated that the respondent Dr. Goldsmith would assert his 5th Amendment right 
against self-incrimination, then presented Dr. Goldsmith’s opening statement. 
 
Mr. Kandt called Yenh Long, Pharm.D., Administrator of the Nevada Prescription Monitoring 
Program as the State’s first witness. 
 
Dr. Long appeared and was sworn by President Basch.  She then answered questions and 
offered testimony during direct and cross examination by counsel. 
 
During Dr. Long’s examination, Mr. Kandt offered exhibits marked as 1 through 8 and B 
through D, to which Mr. Bryson made certain objections.  President Basch probed each 
objection and ruled to admit Exhibits 1 through and B through D into the record. 

17



During Dr. Long’s cross-examination, Mr. Bryson offered Exhibits A and E, to which Mr. 
Kandt offered no objection.  President Basch admitted Exhibits A and E into the record. 
 
Board Members questioned Dr. Long about the PMP, to which she provided testimony to the 
Board Members’ satisfaction.  
 
Mr. Bryson called Detective Matthew Wehn to testify before the Board. 
 
Detective Matthew Wehn appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering 
questions and offering testimony during direct and cross examination by counsel. 
 
Mr. Bryson called Inspector Luis Curras to testify before the Board.  
 
Inspector Luis Curras appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering 
questions and offering testimony during direct and cross examination by counsel. 
 
Mr. Kandt and Mr. Bryson each provided closing arguments. 
 
Mr. Kandt asked the Board to make findings of fact based upon the facts alleged in 
paragraphs 1-11 of the accusation and the evidence presented, with the additional finding 
that Dr. Goldsmith’s PMP account is the only possible source of the PMP information 
published by the Las Vegas Review Journal.  
 
The Board Members deliberated.  
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved the Board to conclude that it has jurisdiction over Dr. 

Goldsmith and this matter. 
 
Second: Melissa Shake  

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
 
President Basch and Mr. Penrod read and discussed articles 2-11a of the Accusation, which 
contained the factual allegations against Dr. Goldsmith.  
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Kirk Wentworth moved to find the factual allegations in paragraphs 2-11a are 

true and correct. 
 
Second: Jason Penrod 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

18



The Board Members deliberated about the applicable law listed in the Notice of Intended 
Action and Accusation and whether Dr. Goldsmith had violated those provisions.  
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to find Ivan Goldsmith guilty of the First Cause of Action. 
 
Second: Kirk Wentworth 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to find Ivan Goldsmith guilty of the Second Cause of 

Action. 
 
Second: Kevin Desmond 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Wayne Michell moved to find Ivan Goldsmith guilty of the Third Cause of 

Action. 
 
Second: Jason Penrod 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to find Ivan Goldsmith guilty of the Fourth Cause of 

Action. 
 
Second: Kevin Desmond 

 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action:  
 
Motion: Kevin Desmond moved to find Ivan Goldsmith guilty of the Fifth Cause of 

Action. 
 
Second: Jason Penrod 

 

19



Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Mr. Kandt offered documents that were previously marked as Exhibits 9 and 10 to support 
the State’s request for reimbursement of its attorneys’ fees and costs for prosecuting the 
case.  
 
President Basch admitted Exhibits 9 and 10 into the record.  
 
Mr. Kandt recommended that the Board require Dr. Goldsmith to implement policies and 
procedures to ensure that neither he nor anyone in his office may further misuse Dr. 
Goldsmith’s access to the PMP and to provide a copy of those policies and procedures to 
Board Staff.  
 
Mr. Kandt further recommended that the Board order Dr. Goldsmith to pay a $10,000 fine, 
$2,000 per cause of action, as well as $16,130.68 in attorneys’ fees and costs. 
 
Mr. Bryson addressed Mr. Kandt’s recommendations and deliberated. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved for an order requiring Dr. Goldsmith to implement policies 

and procedures to ensure there is no further misuse of his access to the PMP, 
to provide a copy of those policies and procedures to Board Staff within 30 
days of the effective date of the Board’s order, to pay a fine of $10,000 and the 
reasonable sum of $16,000 in attorney fees and costs within 30 days of the 
effective date of the Board’s Order.  He further moved that Dr. Goldsmith’s 
Controlled Substance Registration, Certificate of Registration No. CS20816 and 
Dispensing Registration, Certificate of Registration No. PD00413, be revoked.  
The revocation would be stayed and Dr. Goldsmith’s registrations would be 
placed on probation for not less than one year.   

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed Unanimously 
 
 
5. Request for Renewal of Pharmacist License:   
 
  Esther Kim 
 
Esther Kim appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions and 
providing testimony.  
 
Paul Edwards provided some background as to Ms. Kim’s request to renew her license. 
 
Ms. Kim provided reasons for why she is asking for renewal. She explained her prior 
California discipline discussed the status of her California pharmacist license. Ms. Kim also 

20



explained to the Board that she has been doing many things to change and educate herself 
in order to become more qualified for a renewal.  
 
Mr. Edwards stated the facts of the accusations against Ms. Kim in California. The Board 
discussed the accusation. 
 
The Board tabled Ms. Kim’s renewal of her pharmacist license at her request pending 
resolution of the matter in California.  
 
6. Request for Pharmacist License by Reciprocation:  
 
  Salem Mihalick 
 
Salem Mihalick appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions or 
providing testimony.  
 
Ms. Mihalick described her Colorado discipline, the resolution of the requirements imposed 
by the Colorado Board, and her current work situation in Colorado.  
 
President Basch questioned Ms. Mihalick about drug abuse and discussed with the Board 
Ms. Mihalick’s request for reciprocation.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve Ms. Mihalick’s application for reciprocation 

pending a successful PRN-PRN evaluation. If PRN-PRN recommends a 
treatment plan she must enroll and comply with all terms. If she falls out of 
compliance her registration would be suspended immediately. Staff to confirm 
license in good standing in Colorado. 

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
7. Application for Out-of-State Pharmacy – Appearance  
 
  Marian Pharmaceuticals – Daphne, AL 
 
Tabled to future meeting.  
 
8. Application for Out-of-State Wholesaler – Appearance   
 
  Glasshouse Pharmaceuticals LLC – Mississauga, Ontario, Canada 
 
Jan Sahai appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions or 
providing testimony. 
 

21



David Wuest provided background about the company and discussed the Board’s history of 
approving licenses for entities outside of the United States.  
 
Mr. Sahai described the details of his business to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
The Board discussed the application for Out-of-State Wholesaler requested by Mr. Sahai.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve the Out-of-State Wholesaler license with 

conditions that Glasshouse Pharmaceuticals LLC will only provide FDA 
approved products and will verify that all downstream distributors are properly 
licensed and compliant with Nevada Pharmacy laws. 

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
9. Request to Engage in the Practice of Pharmacy at a Site Other Than a Licensed  

Pharmacy – Appearance    
 

Rosemary Gonzalez, R.Ph 
 
Rosemary Gonzalez appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering 
questions or providing testimony. 
 
Paul Edwards provided background regarding the applicant’s request. The applicant is 
asking to perform MTM outside of a pharmacy with a collaborative practice agreement.  
 
Ms. Gonzalez elaborated on her current practice and the collaborative practice agreement. 
Ms. Gonzalez answered questions about her background to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve Rosemary Gonzalez to Engage in the Practice 

of Pharmacy at a Site Other Than a Licensed Pharmacy. 
 
Second: Kevin Desmond 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
10. Applications for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy – Appearance 
  

A. Metro Drugs 3rd Ave Corp – New York, NY 
 
Evon Zampitella appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions 
or providing testimony. 
 

22



President Basch explained to Ms. Zampitella why the Board asked Metro Drugs to appear 
before the Board. 
 
Ms. Zampitella explained to the Board the process and procedures of how Metro Drugs 
operates. Ms. Zampitella explained that the company is up to USP 800 standards and has 
been inspected routinely.  
 
The Board discussed Metro Drugs and the conditions to which they will allow the Out-of-
State Compounding license. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve the Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy 

License for Metro Drugs 3rd Ave Corp pending positive inspection by Board 
Staff at the expense of the applicant and completion of corrected application.  

 
Second: Kevin Desmond 
 
Action: Passed unanimously  
 

B. Talon Compounding Pharmacy – San Antonio, TX 
 
Ronda Wenzel appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions or 
providing testimony. 
 
Ms. Wenzel explained that this is an application for a change in ownership. Talon 
Compounding is working toward compliance with USP 800. Talon Compounding will be 
replacing the former pharmacist manager with Ms. Wenzel.  
 
Ms. Wenzel answered questions about her past work experience and training to the 
satisfaction of the Board. 
 
Board members discussed the request for change in ownership. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve Talon Compounding Pharmacy’s change of 

ownership with conditions. Talon Compounding will work with Board Staff to 
come into compliance with Nevada law.  

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously  
 

C. TwelveStone Medical, Inc. – Murfreesboro, TN 
 
Lee Golden appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions or 
providing testimony. 

23



 
President Basch explained that TwelveStone Medical is applying for an Out-of-State 
Pharmacy Compounding License. 
 
Mr. Golden explained that TwelveStone Medical will not be providing sterile compounding 
products to Nevada and asked the Board if modifications are necessary to the application. 
Mr. Golden also explained the company’s operations and listed the states into which the 
company provides sterile products.  
 
The Board asked Mr. Golden about details of the non-sterile products TwelveStone Medical 
will provide to Nevada. 
 
Mr. Golden answered questions to the satisfaction of the Board.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve TwelveStone Medical, Inc for an Out-of-State 

Pharmacy Compounding License. The applicant must modify their application 
to remove sterile compounding.  

 
Second: Kevin Desmond 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
11. Applications for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility – Appearance  

 
A. Cantrell Drug Company – Little Rock, AR 

 
James McCarley appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions 
or providing testimony. 
 
Dave Wuest provided background about Cantrell Drug Company and its recent interactions 
with the FDA, which led to the recent suspension of its license.  
 
Mr. McCarley read a prepared statement giving background about himself and his company. 
Mr. McCarley explained the outcome of the company’s most recent inspections and 
discussed the precautions his company has taken to ensure it is in compliance with Nevada 
law. Mr. McCarley requested that the Board approve Cantrell Drug Company’s request for 
Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility pending a passed inspection by the FDA. 
 
Yenh Long read a timeline that the Board Staff put together as a background to Mr. 
McCarley’s testimony.  
 
The Board deliberated and questioned Mr. McCarley to clarify certain facts. At Mr. 
McCarley’s request, the Board tabled the application to allow Board Staff more time  to 
obtain information and review additional documentation.  
 
 

24



B.      PharMEDium Services, LLC – Cleveland, MS 
C. PharMEDium Services, LLC – Dayton, NJ 
D. PharMEDium Services, LLC – Memphis, TN 
E. PharMEDium Services, LLC – Sugar Land, TX 

 
Melissa Shake recused from 11B-F because of her employment.  
 
President Basch disclosed that he sees PharMedium packaging in his hospital where he 
works but can continue without bias. 
 
Andrew Harrison and Ty Duginske appeared and were sworn by President Basch prior to 
answering questions or providing testimony. 
 
Dave Wuest provided background about PharMedium and the recent actions taken by 
multiple Boards in other states. Mr. Wuest explained that Board Staff has reviewed the items 
PharMedium sent to the Board Office to ensure changes have been made. 
 
Yenh Long provided a timeline created by the Board Staff of PharMedium’s recent actions 
and disciplines.  
 
Mr. Harrison and Mr. Duginske answered questions from the Board regarding their 
companies process and current standing with other Boards.  
 
At the applicant’s request, the Board tabled PharMedium’s application for Out-of-State 
Outsourcing Facility pending Board Staff’s review of additional information, including 
PharMedium’s unredacted FDA 483, its most recent California Audit and additional 
documentation required by Board Staff. PharmMedium will be required to reappear in order 
to be approved.  
 

F. SCA Pharmaceuticals LLC – Winsor, CT 
  
Kevin Desmond disclosed that his company receives product from SCA but can participate 
without bias. 
 
Wayne Mitchell disclosed that his company receives product from SCA but can participate 
without bias.  
 
Cindy Mittman appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions or 
providing testimony.  
 
Ms. Mittman provided a letter of authorization to the Board.  
 
President Basch and Dave Wuest questioned Ms. Mittman about company details pertaining 
to SCA. 
 
Ms. Mittman provided information to the Board about SCA, inspections, and policy and 
procedures initiated to ensure compliance.  
 

25



Yenh Long and Mr. Weust questioned Ms. Mittman about the company’s redacted FDA 483, 
the 2018 inspection done by the FDA and went through each individual observation. Ms. 
Mittman answered all questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Ms. Long stated that she felt comfortable with SCA that it appears they addressed all the 
observations documented in the redacted 483.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve SCA Pharmaceuticals pending the receipt of 

unredacted 483’s and responses to the Board Staff for review.  
 
Second: Kirk Wentworth 
 
Action: Passed Unanimously  
 
 
12. Request to Add Compounding and Shipping of Sterile Compounded Drugs to an 

Existing Out-of-State Pharmacy License – Appearance   
 
  Schraft’s 2.0 – Cedar Knolls, NJ 
 
Adam Hait appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions and 
providing testimony. 
 
Mr. Hait provided background about the products Schraft’s will be supplying to Nevada and 
the standards at which they operate.  
 
The Board questioned Mr. Hait about policy and procedures.  
 
David Wuest and Yenh Long questioned Mr. Hait about the products they will be 
compounding and providing to the State of Nevada.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve Schraft’s 2.0 to perform sterile compounding 

pending receipt of VPP inspection. Board Staff is authorized to review and 
evaluate the VPP inspection document.  

 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
13. Application for Nevada Wholesaler – Appearance  
 
  Forte Bio-Pharma, LLC – Las Vegas, NV 
 

26



Jim Ferris appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions or 
providing testimony. 
 
Mr. Ferris provided background about his facility and what drug it will be supplying to 
Nevada.  
 
President Basch questioned Mr. Ferris about his pharmaceutical background.  
 
The Board continued to question Mr. Ferris about the medication his company will be 
providing to Nevada and the policy and procedures related to Forte Bio-Pharma.  
 
The Board expressed concerns about relationships between Forte Bio-Pharma and 
physicians, application completeness and past history of employees.  
 
Mr. Ferris answered questions from the Board to the satisfaction of the Board.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve Forte Bio-Pharma, LCC pending receipt of 

written clarification on Whittenbrock’s criminal history question and Ansarinia’s 
criminal history. Board Staff is authorized to review and evaluate.   

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously  
 
14.  Applications for Nevada Pharmacy – Appearance  
 

A. Sisu Healthcare Solutions, Inc. – Las Vegas, NV  
 
Tom Dodge and Marcus Ulm appeared and were sworn by President Basch prior to 
answering questions or providing testimony. 
 
Mr. Dodge and Mr. Ulm answered questions from the Board about the policies and 
procedures regarding their company. They explained the details surrounding their company 
and what kind of medications they will be providing to the public.  
 
Jason Penrod questioned Mr. Dodge about his past criminal history and what he is currently 
doing to minimize chances of poor decisions.  
 
Mr. Dodge answered all the questions about his past criminal and work history. Mr. Dodge 
explained what happened during his past inspections from the Board of Pharmacy.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jason Penrod moved to approve Sisu Healthcare Solutions, Inc.’s application 

for a Nevada Pharmacy pending positive initial inspection. Additional 
inspections by Board Staff at 3 and 6 months at Sisu’s expense. Pharmacy 

27



Staff to receive formal training by a Board Staff-approved third party company. 
Board Staff to inspect to ensure pharmacy staff’s sterile compounding 
competence. Board Staff authorized to approve third party sterile compounding 
training company.  

 
Second: Kevin Desmond 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. SNNAC, LLC – Reno, NV 
 
Sunil Skaria appeared and was sworn by President Basch prior to answering questions or 
providing testimony. 
 
President Basch disclosed that he received questions regarding SNNAC but can participate 
without bias.  
 
Mr. Skaria explained to the Board what SNNAC does in the State of Nevada and the current 
situation surrounding employment.  
 
Board questioned the policy and procedures regarding SNNAC and what practices will take 
place at their practice  
 
Mr. Skaria answered the questions about SNNAC to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve SNNAC, LLC application for a Nevada 

Pharmacy pending a positive inspection from Board Staff. SNNAC shall hire 
Pharmacist in Charge within 60 days.  

 
Second: Melissa Shake 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
15. Request to Retake the Nevada MPJE Examination – Appearance   
 
  Nazanin Kazeminy 
 
Nazanin Kazeminy was not present at the Board Meeting. 
 
Melissa Shake recused because Ms. Kazeminy was previously her intern.  
 
Ms. Shake stated that Ms. Kazeminy was told that she did not have to appear before the 
Board. 
 
Brett Kandt provided the Board with a background about Ms. Kazeminy’s test history and the 
options they have to move forward.  

28



Board Action: 
 
Motion: Robert Sullivan moved to approve Nazanin Kazeminy to retake the MPJE. 
 
Second: Kevin Desmond 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
16. General Counsel Report 
 
Brett Kandt reported that currently there is no pending litigation. Mr. Kandt reported that he 
responded to the Executive Branch Audit on behalf of the Board.  
 
17. Approval of 2019 Board Meeting Dates 
 
Tabled until future meeting.  
 
18. Executive Secretary Report: 
 

A. Financial Report: 
 1.  Treasurer’s Report 

 B. Temporary Licenses 
C. Staff Activities: 

  1.  Meetings with other health care boards  
  2.  Treasurer training 
  3.  Governor’s Opioid Accountability Meeting 
  4.  Critical Point Training, Yenh completed sterile compounding training 
  5.  Yenh participated in the National Board of Pharmacy Steering Committee 
  6.  Annual Report, update 
  7.  Paul presented at the Rotary Club Reno 
  8.  Participation in the Nevada Healthcare Option Meetings 
  9.  Roseman student rotation started August 20th 
10.  Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force National Award 
11.  NASCSA 

D. Report to Board: 
 1.  Licensing software update  

 E. Board Related News 
  1.  District Meeting  October 14-17 Kansas City 
  2.  NABP Member Forum November 28-29 2018 
  3.  NABP Executive Forum October 2-3 2018 

 F. Licensing Activities Report 
 
19. Notice of Proposed Regulation Workshop Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  
 

The purpose of the workshop is to solicit comments from interested persons on the 
following general topic that may be addressed in the proposed regulation: 

 

29



Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.250: Restrictions on 
supervision. The proposed amendment to NAC 639.250 will allow for an increase in 
pharmaceutical technician to pharmacist ratio in certain pharmacy settings. 

 
 Tabled to future meeting.  
 
20. Notice of Proposed Regulation Public Hearing Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2):   

 
Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code Chapter 639 to add a new section 
thereto providing for the prescribing or dispensing of controlled substances for 
the treatment of pain in conformance with Assembly Bill 474 from the 2017 
Nevada Legislative Session.  (LCB File No. R144-18) 

  
The proposed amendments relate to controlled substances.  They clarify the 
requirements a practitioner must follow when obtaining informed written consent to 
prescribe a controlled substance, entering into prescription medication agreements 
concerning a class of certain controlled substances and establishing a manner for 
obtaining an assessment of a patient’s risk for abuse, dependency and addiction; and 
providing other matters properly relating thereto.   
 
Tabled to future meeting.  

 
21. Date and Location of Next Scheduled Board Meeting: 
 
  October 10-11, 2018 – Las Vegas, NV 
 
22. Public Comment  
 
There was no public comment. 
 

30



3

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



4 

67



MATRIX GUIDELINE FOR
DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

lst Action 2nd Action 3rd Action

The investigative committee will review each case individually and may recommend a board
hearing, particularly with mitigating circumstances such as inappropriate technician
involvement or pharmacist malfeasance.

ln certain cases with ingested errors and significant negative health circumstances requiring
institutional care, the investigative committee recommendation will be a board hearing.

ln all death cases resulting from inappropriate drug therapy a board hearing will occur.

Attomey fees will be added costs in contested disciplinary actions requiring extensive attorney
preparation and presentation and are not described in the above matrix.

The board has directed that ownership may be charged in disciplinary cases. ln non-ingested
errors copies of admonition letters will be sent to management. Accumulative actions for
ownership monitoring will be based upon a 3 year period. All actions including non-ingested
errors will be given a case number and monitored.

The Board has the authority to fine from $0.00 to $10,000 for each Cause of Action.

Non inqested error Letter Letter Hearing
Counseling CE +

No counselinq $750.00 $1000.00 Hearino

Administrative fee $495.00 $495.00 $495.00

lnqested no potential harm $500.00 $1000.00 Hearinq

lngested with potential harm
or adverse outcomes $1000.00 Hearinq Hearing

lngested with negative outcome
or patient discomfort.
No institution intervention Hearino Hearinq Hearing

lngested with significant negative
health circumstance.
With institution admit Hearino Hearino Hearino

lngested with death related to
drug therapy Hearing Hearing H

Updated August 2014

68



69



70



71



72



73



4A

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



4B

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4C

112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4D

139



140



141



142



143



144



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4E

145



146



147



148



149



150



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4F

151



152



153



154



155



156



157



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4G

158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4H

166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4I

176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



BEFORE THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY, 

 

Petitioner, 

v. 

 

MICHAEL DEAN BELL, DDS 

Certificate of Registration No. CS04818, 

 

                                                            Respondent. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

/ 

CASE NO.   17-102-CS-S  

 

 

 

STIPULATION AND ORDER 

 

 

 Brett Kandt, General Counsel for Petitioner the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

(Board), and Respondent MICHAEL DEAN BELL, DDS, Certificate of Registration No. 

CS04818, by and through his counsel, David Roger, Esq., HEREBY STIPULATE AND 

AGREE THAT: 

1.       The Board has jurisdiction over Respondent and this matter.  

2. On or about August 23, 2018, Board Staff properly served the Notice of Intended 

Action and Accusation (Accusation) on file in this matter on Respondent, together with a 

Statement to Respondent and Notice of Hearing. 

3. In lieu of filing an Answer to the Accusation, Respondent has entered into this 

Stipulation. 

4. Respondent is fully aware of his right to seek the advice of counsel in this matter 

and obtained the advice of counsel prior to entering into this Stipulation. 

5. Respondent is aware of his right to a hearing on the matters alleged in the 

Accusation, his right to reconsideration, his right to appeal and any and all other rights which 

may be accorded to him pursuant to NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure Act), 

NRS Chapter 622A (Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and NRS 

Chapter 639 (Nevada Pharmacy Act). 

6. Conditioned on the acceptance of this Stipulation by the Board, and with the 

exception of his right to challenge any future determination that Respondent has failed to comply 

184



with the provisions of Paragraphs 9, 14 and 15 below, Respondent hereby freely and voluntarily 

waives his rights to a hearing, reconsideration, appeal and any and all other rights related to this 

action that may be accorded to him by NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure 

Act), NRS Chapter 622A (Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and 

NRS Chapter 639 (Nevada Pharmacy Act). 

7. Respondent admits that evidence exists, and that Board staff prosecuting this case 

could present such evidence at an administrative hearing, to establish a factual basis for the 

violations alleged in the Accusation, to wit, that Respondent attempted to access Stephen 

Paddock’s confidential data in the Nevada Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) database and 

attempted to obtain patient utilization reports detailing Paddock’s prescription-controlled 

substance utilization history, after Paddock was deceased and although Paddock was never 

Respondent’s patient. 

8. Those violations are plead with particularity in the Accusation and are grounds for 

action pursuant to NRS 639.210 and NRS 639.255. 

9. Based upon the Accusation and the foregoing admissions, the Board and 

Respondent stipulate to the following penalties.  Respondent Michael Dean Bell, DDS, 

Certificate of Registration No. CS04818, shall: 

A. Implement any internal controls and procedures necessary to ensure that 

his staff do not use his PMP account to query the PMP on his behalf except as authorized by law; 

B. Pay a fine of Two-Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) associated with the 

violations indicated above; and  

C. Pay an administrative fee of Two-Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) to 

partially reimburse the Board for reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in investigating 

and prosecuting this matter. 

10. Any failure by Respondent to comply with the terms of this Stipulation and Order 

may result in issuance by the Executive Secretary of an order to show cause directing 

185



Respondent to appear before the Board at the next regularly-scheduled meeting for a show cause 

hearing.  If such a hearing results in a finding of a violation of this Stipulation and Order by 

Respondent, the Board may impose additional discipline upon Respondent not inconsistent with 

the provisions of NRS Chapter 639.   

11. General Counsel will present this Stipulation to the Board for approval pursuant 

to NRS 622.330 at the Board’s regularly scheduled public meeting on October 10, 2018, in Las 

Vegas, Nevada.  Respondent will appear at the meeting to answer questions from the Board 

Members and/or Board Staff.  The Board Members and Staff may discuss and deliberate 

regarding this Stipulation, even if Respondent or his counsel are not present at the meeting. 

12. The Board has discretion to accept this Stipulation, but it is not obligated to do so.  

If this Stipulation is approved by the Board it shall be a public record pursuant to NRS 622.330. 

13. If the Board rejects any part or all of this Stipulation, and unless they reach an 

alternative agreement on the record during the hearing, the parties agree that a full hearing on the 

merits of this matter may be heard by the Board.  The terms and admissions herein may not be 

used or referred to in a full hearing on the merits of this matter. 

14. Upon approval of this Stipulation by the Board, Respondent shall pay the fine 

agreed to herein by cashier’s check or certified check or money order made payable to “State of 

Nevada, Office of the Treasurer,” to be received by the Board’s Reno office located at 431 W. 

Plumb Lane, Reno, Nevada 89509, within thirty (30) days of the execution of this Order.  

15. Upon approval of this Stipulation by the Board, Respondent shall pay the 

administrative fee agreed to herein by cashier’s check or certified check or money order made 

payable to “Nevada State Board of Pharmacy,” to be received by the Board’s Reno office located 

at 431 W. Plumb Lane, Reno, Nevada 89509, within thirty (30) days of the execution of this 

Order.   

16. Subject to the approval of this Stipulation by the Board, the Board and 

Respondent agree to release each other from any and all additional claims arising from the facts 

186



set forth in the Accusation on file herein, whether known or unknown that might otherwise have 

existed on or before the effective date of this Order.  

 

Respondent has fully considered the charges and allegations contained in the Notice of 

Intended Action and Accusation in this matter, and the terms of this Stipulation, and has 

freely and voluntarily agreed to the terms set forth herein, and waived certain rights, as 

stated herein. 

 

AGREED: 
 
Signed this ___ day of October, 2018              

 

 

________________________________ 

RESPONDENT MICHAEL DEAN BELL, DDS 
Certificate of Registration No. CS04818 
 
 
Signed this ___ day of October, 2018              

 

 

________________________________    

BRETT KANDT, Esq. 

General Counsel 

Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

 

 

DECISION AND ORDER 

 The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy hereby adopts the foregoing Stipulation as its 

decision as to Respondent Michael Dean Bell, DDS, Certificate of Registration No. CS04818, in 

Case No. 17-102-CS-S and hereby orders that the terms of the foregoing Stipulation be made 

effective upon execution below.  

 

 

           

____________________________   ______________________________ 

Dated       Leo Basch, President 

      Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

187



188



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4J

189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



BEFORE THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY, 

 

Petitioner, 

v. 

 

VENUS VEDADI, R.PH., 

Certificate of Registration No. 18969, 

 

                                                            Respondent. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

/ 

CASE NO.   17-112-RPH-S 

 

 

STIPULATION AND ORDER 

 

 Brett Kandt, General Counsel for Petitioner the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

(Board), and Respondent VENUS VEDADI, R.Ph., Certificate of Registration No. 18969, by 

and through her counsel, Lyn E. Beggs, Esq., HEREBY STIPULATE AND AGREE THAT: 

1.       The Board has jurisdiction over Respondent and this matter.  

2. On or about August 23, 2018, Board Staff properly served the Notice of Intended 

Action and Accusation (Accusation) on file in this matter on Respondent, together with a 

Statement to Respondent and Notice of Hearing. 

3. In lieu of filing an Answer to the Accusation, Respondent has entered into this 

Stipulation. 

4. Respondent is fully aware of her right to seek the advice of counsel in this matter 

and obtained the advice of counsel prior to entering into this Stipulation. 

5. Respondent is aware of her right to a hearing on the matters alleged in the 

Accusation, her right to reconsideration, her right to appeal and any and all other rights which 

may be accorded to her pursuant to NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure Act), 

NRS Chapter 622A (Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and NRS 

Chapter 639 (Nevada Pharmacy Act). 

6. Conditioned on the acceptance of this Stipulation by the Board, and with the 

exception of her right to challenge any future determination that Respondent has failed to comply 

with the provisions of Paragraphs 9, 14 and 15 below, Respondent hereby freely and voluntarily 

197



waives her rights to a hearing, reconsideration, appeal and any and all other rights related to this 

action that may be accorded to her by NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure 

Act), NRS Chapter 622A (Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and 

NRS Chapter 639 (Nevada Pharmacy Act). 

7. Respondent admits that evidence exists, and that Board staff prosecuting this case 

could present such evidence at an administrative hearing, to establish a factual basis for the 

violations alleged in the Accusation, to wit, that Respondent accessed Stephen Paddock’s 

confidential data in the Nevada Prescription Monitoring Program (PMP) database and obtained 

patient utilization reports detailing Paddock’s prescription-controlled substance utilization 

history, after Paddock was deceased and although Paddock was never Respondent’s patient. 

8. Those violations are plead with particularity in the Accusation and are grounds for 

action pursuant to NRS 639.210 and NRS 639.255. 

9. Based upon the Accusation and the foregoing admissions, the Board and 

Respondent stipulate to the following penalties.  Respondent Venus Vedadi, R.Ph., Certificate of 

Registration No. 18969, shall: 

A. Pay a fine of Five-Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) associated with the 

violations indicated above; and  

B. Pay an administrative fee of Five-Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) to 

partially reimburse the Board for reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in investigating 

and prosecuting this matter. 

10. Any failure by Respondent to comply with the terms of this Stipulation and Order 

may result in issuance by the Executive Secretary of an order to show cause directing 

Respondent to appear before the Board at the next regularly-scheduled meeting for a show cause 

hearing.  If such a hearing results in a finding of a violation of this Stipulation and Order by 

Respondent, the Board may impose additional discipline upon Respondent not inconsistent with 

the provisions of NRS Chapter 639.   

198



11. General Counsel will present this Stipulation to the Board for approval pursuant 

to NRS 622.330 at the Board’s regularly scheduled public meeting on October 10, 2018, in Las 

Vegas, Nevada.  Respondent will appear at the meeting to answer questions from the Board 

Members and/or Board Staff.  The Board Members and Staff may discuss and deliberate 

regarding this Stipulation, even if Respondent or her counsel are not present at the meeting. 

12. The Board has discretion to accept this Stipulation, but it is not obligated to do so.  

If this Stipulation is approved by the Board it shall be a public record pursuant to NRS 622.330. 

13. If the Board rejects any part or all of this Stipulation, and unless they reach an 

alternative agreement on the record during the hearing, the parties agree that a full hearing on the 

merits of this matter may be heard by the Board.  The terms and admissions herein may not be 

used or referred to in a full hearing on the merits of this matter. 

14. Upon approval of this Stipulation by the Board, Respondent shall pay the fine 

agreed to herein by cashier’s check or certified check or money order made payable to “State of 

Nevada, Office of the Treasurer,” to be received by the Board’s Reno office located at 431 W. 

Plumb Lane, Reno, Nevada 89509, within sixty (60) days of the execution of this Order.  

15. Upon approval of this Stipulation by the Board, Respondent shall pay the 

administrative fee agreed to herein by cashier’s check or certified check or money order made 

payable to “Nevada State Board of Pharmacy,” to be received by the Board’s Reno office located 

at 431 W. Plumb Lane, Reno, Nevada 89509, within sixty (60) days of the execution of this 

Order.   

16. Subject to the approval of this Stipulation by the Board, the Board and 

Respondent agree to release each other from any and all additional claims arising from the facts 

set forth in the Accusation on file herein, whether known or unknown that might otherwise have 

existed on or before the effective date of this Order.  

 

  

199



Respondent has fully considered the charges and allegations contained in the Notice of 

Intended Action and Accusation in this matter, and the terms of this Stipulation, and has 

freely and voluntarily agreed to the terms set forth herein, and waived certain rights, as 

stated herein. 

 

AGREED: 
 
Signed this ___ day of October, 2018              

 

 

________________________________ 

VENUS VEDADI, R.PH., 
Certificate of Registration No. 18969 
 
 
Signed this ___ day of October, 2018              

 

 

________________________________    

BRETT KANDT, Esq. 

General Counsel 

Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

 

 

DECISION AND ORDER 

 The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy hereby adopts the foregoing Stipulation as its 

decision as to Respondent Venus Vedadi, R.Ph., Certificate of Registration No. 18969, in Case 

No. 17-112-RPH-S and hereby orders that the terms of the foregoing Stipulation be made 

effective upon execution below.  

 

 

           

____________________________   ______________________________ 

Dated       Leo Basch, President 

      Nevada State Board of Pharmacy  

200



201



202



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4K 

203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



BEFORE THE NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY, 

  

Petitioner,  

v.  

 

JOYCE CHANG, MD, 

Certificate of Registration Nos. CS15881 

                                                      PD00340, 

                                                       

Respondent. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

/ 

CASE NO.  18-029-CS-S 

 

 

 

STIPULATION AND ORDER 

 

 Brett Kandt, General Counsel for Petitioner the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

(Board), and Respondent JOYCE P. CHANG, MD, Certificate of Registration Nos. CS15881 

and PD00340, by and through her counsel, L. Kristopher Rath, Esq., HEREBY STIPULATE 

AND AGREEi THAT: 

1.       The Board has jurisdiction over Respondent and this matter.  

2. On or about September 7, 2018, Board Staff properly served the Notice of 

Intended Action and Accusation (Accusation) on file in this matter on Respondent, together with 

a Statement to Respondent and Notice of Hearing. 

3. In lieu of filing an Answer to the Accusation, Respondent has entered into this 

Stipulation. 

4. Respondent is fully aware of her right to seek the advice of counsel in this matter 

and obtained the advice of counsel prior to entering into this Stipulation. 

5. Respondent is aware of her right to a hearing on the matters alleged in the 

Accusation, her right to reconsideration, her right to appeal and any and all other rights which 

may be accorded to her pursuant to NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure Act), 

i All agreements and admissions made by Respondent are solely for final disposition of this 

matter before the Board and any subsequent related administrative proceedings before the Board 

or civil litigation involving the Board and Respondent.  Therefore, Respondent’s agreements and 

admissions are not intended or made for any other use, such as in the context of another State or 

Federal government regulatory agency proceeding, any State or Federal civil or criminal 

proceeding, and State or Federal court proceeding, and/or any credentialing and/or privileges 

matter.  

216



NRS Chapter 622A (Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and NRS 

Chapter 639 (Nevada Pharmacy Act). 

6. Conditioned on the acceptance of this Stipulation by the Board, and with the 

exception of her right to challenge any future determination that Respondent has failed to comply 

with the provisions of Paragraph 9 below, Respondent hereby freely and voluntarily waives her 

rights to a hearing, reconsideration, appeal and any and all other rights related to this action that 

may be accorded to her by NRS Chapter 233B (Nevada Administrative Procedure Act), NRS 

Chapter 622A (Administrative Procedure Before Certain Regulatory Bodies), and NRS Chapter 

639 (Nevada Pharmacy Act). 

7. Respondent does not contest nor admit the allegations in the Accusation, to wit, 

that Respondent: 

A. Aided and abetted the unlawful prescribing of controlled substances in 

violation of federal law, including 21 CFR § 1306.03, 21 CFR § 1306.04, and 21 CFR § 1306.05, 

and Nevada law, including NRS 453.321(1)(a), NRS 453.331(1)(c), (d), (f) and (i), NRS 

639.2813(1) and NAC 453.440(1)(c);   

B. Aided and abetted the unlawful prescribing of dangerous drugs in 

violation of NRS 454.223(2)(a), NRS 454.311(1) and (2), NRS 639.235(1), NRS 639.2813(1) 

and NAC 454.060(1); 

C. Unlawfully prescribed controlled substances and dangerous drugs to 

patients with whom she did not have a bona fide practitioner/patient relationship in violation of 

NRS 639.235 and/or NRS 639.23911(1)(a); 

D. Failed to segregate expired medications from unexpired medications and 

secure those expired medications in an area where they could not be used to administer or fill 

prescriptions in violation of NRS 639.282(1)(d), NAC 639.510(3) and NAC 639.601(1); 

E. Failed to keep and produce records documenting patient names and dates 

for Hydroquinone Tretinoin and/or Juvéderm syringes dispensed or administered by her office, 

and failed to maintain a recordkeeping system with a readily retrievable record of her patients’ 

217



names and the dates for Hydroquinone Tretinoin and/or Juvéderm injections dispensed or 

administered by her office, in violation of NRS 639.234(4) and NAC 639.745(1)(a) and 3; and 

F. Engaged in conduct violative of NAC 639.945(1)(h) by allowing other 

practitioners to treat her patients and bill Medicaid and other commercial health insurance plans 

using Respondent’s National Provider Identifier, thereby representing falsely that Respondent 

provided the services and prescriptions personally, and causing Medicaid and other commercial 

health insurance plans to submit payment to her office for services she did not provide. 

8. Those violations are plead with particularity in the Accusation and are grounds for 

action pursuant to NRS 639.210 and NRS 639.255. 

9. In order to resolve this matter without incurring any further costs or the expense 

associated with a hearing, and without Respondent admitting to the allegations in the Accusation, 

the Board and Respondent stipulate to the following penalties: 

A. Respondent Joyce P. Chang’s Controlled Substance Registration, 

Certificate No. CS15881, and Practitioner Dispensing Registration, Certificate No. PD00340, are 

each revoked effective upon approval of this Stipulation by the Board. 

B. Unless and until Respondent applies for reinstatement of her controlled 

substance registration and/or her dispensing practitioner registration, and the Board reinstates her 

registration(s), Chang:  

1) May not possess any controlled substance other than a controlled 

substance that was lawfully prescribed to her by a licensed practitioner and lawfully dispensed to 

her for her own personal use to treat a documented medical necessity.   

2) May not possess any controlled substance for office use or for 

patient use and must immediately and lawfully dispose of any and all controlled substances in 

her possession and/or control, other than a controlled substance lawfully prescribed and 

dispensed to her for her own personal use. 

3) May not prescribe any controlled substance. 

4) May not dispense any controlled substance or dangerous drug. 

218



5) The provisions of Paragraph 9.B.(1) through 9.B.(4), inclusive, do 

not apply to any other practitioners who work at Dr. Chang’s clinic or medical offices, whether 

employed by Dr. Chang’s professional corporation or associated with Dr. Chang’s professional 

corporation via independent contractor agreements, who hold their own active controlled 

substance and dispensing practitioner registrations issued by the Board.  

C. Pursuant to NRS 639.257(1), Respondent may apply for reinstatement of 

her controlled substance and/or dispensing practitioner registrations after one (1) year has 

elapsed from the date of revocation.  

D. In the event Respondent applies for reinstatement, or for any other 

registration or certificate with the Board, she shall appear before the Board to answer questions 

and give testimony regarding her application, her compliance with this Order, and the facts and 

circumstances underlying this matter.  The Board may consider the testimony and information 

provided at said appearance, and in the event of denial of Respondent’s application for 

reinstatement shall specify on the record the reasons therefor pursuant to NRS 639.138.  

E. Respondent shall pay an administrative fee of Three-Thousand Dollars 

($3,000.00) to partially reimburse the Board for reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in 

investigating and prosecuting this matter.  Respondent shall pay the administrative fee by 

cashier’s check or certified check or money order made payable to “Nevada State Board of 

Pharmacy,” to be received by the Board’s Reno office located at 431 W. Plumb Lane, Reno, 

Nevada 89509, within thirty (30) days of approval of this Stipulation by the Board. 

10. Any failure by Respondent to comply with the terms of this Stipulation and Order 

may result in issuance by the Executive Secretary of an order to show cause directing 

Respondent to appear before the Board at the next regularly-scheduled meeting for a show cause 

hearing.  If such a hearing results in a finding of a violation of this Stipulation and Order by 

Respondent, the Board may impose additional discipline upon Respondent not inconsistent with 

the provisions of NRS Chapter 639.   

219



11. General Counsel will present this Stipulation to the Board for approval pursuant 

to NRS 622.330 at the Board’s regularly scheduled public meeting on October 10, 2018, in Las 

Vegas, Nevada.  Respondent will appear at the meeting to answer questions from the Board 

Members and/or Board Staff.  The Board Members and Staff may discuss and deliberate 

regarding this Stipulation, even if Respondent or her counsel are not present at the meeting. 

12. The Board has discretion to accept this Stipulation, but it is not obligated to do so.  

If this Stipulation is approved by the Board it shall be a public record pursuant to NRS 622.330. 

13. If the Board rejects any part or all of this Stipulation, and unless they reach an 

alternative agreement on the record during the hearing, the parties agree that a full hearing on the 

merits of this matter may be heard by the Board at a future Board meeting.  The terms and 

admissions herein may not be used or referred to in a full hearing on the merits of this matter. 

14. Subject to the approval of this Stipulation by the Board, the Board and 

Respondent agree to release each other from any and all additional claims arising from the facts 

set forth in the Accusation on file herein, whether known or unknown that might otherwise have 

existed on or before the effective date of this Order.  

 

  

220



Respondent has fully considered the charges and allegations contained in the Notice of 

Intended Action and Accusation in this matter, and the terms of this Stipulation, and has 

freely and voluntarily agreed to the terms set forth herein, and waived certain rights, as 

stated herein. 

 

AGREED: 
 
Signed this ___ day of October, 2018              

 

 

________________________________ 

JOYCE CHANG, MD, 

Certificate of Registration Nos. CS15881 

                                                      PD00340 
 
 
Signed this ___ day of October, 2018              

 

 

________________________________    

BRETT KANDT, Esq. 

General Counsel 

Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

 

 

DECISION AND ORDER 

 The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy hereby adopts the foregoing Stipulation as its 

decision as to Respondent Joyce P. Chang, MD, Certificate of Registration Nos. CS15881 and 

PD00340, in Case No. 18-029-CS-S and hereby orders that the terms of the foregoing Stipulation 

be made effective upon execution below.  

 

 

           

____________________________   ______________________________ 

Dated       Leo Basch, President 

      Nevada State Board of Pharmacy  

  

221



222



223



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6A

261



262



263



264



265



266



267



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6B

268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6C

282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



6D

294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8

316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9

346



347



348



349



350



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10A

351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10B

383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11

418



419



420



421



422



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12

423



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

424



425



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14

426



427



428



429



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15

430



431



432



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16

433



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17

 

434


	Cover
	Agenda
	2. Approval of September 5-6, 2018 Minutes
	3.Consent Agenda
	A.	Advanced Pharmacy Solutions – Laguna Hills, CA
	B.	Aviva Care Pharmacy – Sunrise, FL
	C.	CareMetx Health, LLC – Gaithersbug, MD
	D.	Chesterfield Pharmacy – Garland, TX
	E.	Comprehensive Care Pharmacy – Clinton, TN
	F.	Concentrix CVG – Tucson, AZ
	G.	Fresenius Medical Care North America – Lake Bluff, IL
	H.	Lakeside Pharmacy – Monterey, LA
	I.	Med 4 Home – Kansas City, MO
	J.	PharMerica – Louisville, KY
	K.	PillPack LLC – Manchester, NH
	L.	Pineland Pharmacy – Richardson, TX
	M.	Preveon Specialty Pharmacy – Highland, CA
	N.	Professional Pharmacy Resources – Pace, FL
	O.	St. Joseph’s McAuley Pharmacy – Phoenix, AZ
	P.	Amneal Pharmaceuticals LLC – Glasgow, KY
	Q.	Amneal Pharmaceuticals LLC – Glasgow, KY
	R.	Aprecia Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Blue Ash, OH
	S.	Arnold Dental Supply Company, Inc. – Lynnwood, WA
	T.	Burke Therapeutics, LLC – Hot Springs, AR
	U.	DSC Logistics, LLC – Rancho Cucamonga, CA
	V.	DSC Logistics, LLC – Jefferson, GA
	W.	Eyevance Pharmaceuticals LLC – Fort Worth, TX
	X.	Humco Holding Group, Inc. – Texarkana, TX
	Y.	JAMS Wholesale Distribution Services LLC – Coconut Creek, FL
	Z.	NDC Homecare LLC – LaVerge, TN
	AA.	Shire Rare Disease U.S. Biotech, Inc. – Lexington, MA
	BB.	Spectra Medical Devices, Inc. – Wilmington, MA
	CC.	Triad Isotopes – Memphis, TN
	DD.	Wolf Medical Supply – Sunrise, FL
	EE.	Angelini Pharma Inc. – Gaithersburg, MD
	FF.	Crown Medical Solutions, LLC – Lemon Grove, CA
	GG.	Mainlands Medical Inc. – Pinellas Park, FL
	HH.	LVS Surgery Center LLC – Las Vegas, NV
	II.	Preferred Pharmacy – Las Vegas, NV

	4. Discipline
	A.	David J. Adams, DO				(17-095-CS-S)
	B. Robert Gaimaro, PA    (17-103-CS-S)
	C.	Lucas Meyers, R.Ph				(16-089-RPH-A-S)
	D.	Thy Thai Nguyen, R.Ph				(16-089-RPH-B-S
	E.	Walgreens #03922					(16-089-PH-A-S)
	F.	Walgreens Co.					(16-089-PH-B-S)
	G.	Tiffany C. Hall, PT					(18-057-PT-S)
	H.	Veronica S. Ashworth, PT				(18-064-PT-S)
	I.	Michael Bell, DDS					(17-102-CS-S)
	J.	Venus Vedadi, R.Ph				(17-112-RPH-S)
	K. Joyce Chang (18-029-CS-S)

	5. Application for NV Pharmacy- Genoa Healthcare, LLC – Las Vegas, NV
	 6.	Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy 
	A.	Advanced InfusionCare – Valdosta, GA
	B.	Marian Pharmaceuticals – Daphne, AL
	C. NexGen Compounding Pharmacy – Weatherford, TX
	D.	SMP Pharmacy Solutions #2 – Miami, FL

	7. Application for Out-of-State Outsourcing Facility Athenex Pharma Solutions, LLC – Clarence, NY
	8. Application for NV MDEG iSleep, LLC – Reno, NV
	9. Request for Removal of Restriction from Working as a Managing Pharmacist -Ronald H. Engberson
	10.	Requests for Renewal of Pharmacist License 
	A.	Moshe Lalehzari
	B.	Phic Kaing Lim

	11. Request for an Intern License- Thomas Ealy 
	12. General Counsel Report 
	13.	Approval of 2019 Board Meeting Dates
	14.	Executive Secretary Report:
	15. Workshop
	16. Date and Location of Next Scheduled Board Meeting:



